
TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR COUNCIL MEETING HELD OCTOBER 2, 2012: 
  

A. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s): 
1. Regular Meeting of September 18, 2012. 

B. Presentation of 20-Year Service Award to Sammy Standefer, Planning Director.   
C. Proclamation(s): 

1. Declaring October 7th—13th, 2012 as Fire Prevention Week in Portales, New Meixco.   
D. Update of U.S. Highway 70 Improvements. 
E. Contract to Lease the Blackwater Draw Well Field for Grazing of Cattle to Chad Davis. 
F. Resolution #12-13-14 , Acceptance of Donation of Roosevelt County Milnesand Fire Department’s 1994 

Ford Ambulance to the City of Portales/Roosevelt County Emergency Management Program. 
G. Other Business/Citizens to be Heard. 
H. Executive Session/Closed Executive Meeting: 

1. Action to Convene in a Closed Session/Meeting to Discuss Matters as Provided for under New 
Mexico Statutes Pertaining to Open Meetings Referencing § 10-15-1 H.(2), 2008, for Limited 
Personnel Matters; § 20-15-1 H.(7), 1995 for Attorney-Client Privilege Pertaining to Threatened or 
Pending Litigation. 

2. Action to Convene in Open Session. 
3. Action Required as a Result of the Closed Session. 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORTALES met in regular session Tuesday, October 4, 2012, 
at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers of the Portales City Hall in full conformity with the rules and 
regulations.  Mayor King called the meeting to order and asked City Clerk Martinez-Terry to call roll. 
Those present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 
MAYOR:  Sharon L. King   
 
 
MAYOR PRO-TEM: Ronald L. Jackson   
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Matthew Tod Hunton (absent)  Antonio Salguero 
   Leo Lovett (absent)   Oscar Robinson  
   Michael Lenard Lucero   Keith A. Thomas (absent)   
   Dianne Y. Parker       
 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Tom Howell, City Manager  Mark Cage, Police Lieutenant 

Joan Martinez-City Clerk   Gary Nuckols, Fire Chief 
Steve Doerr, City Attorney  Johnny DeSha, Public Wks. Dir.   
Dennis Hales, I.T. Dir.   Sammy Standefer, Planning Dir. 
Susan Baysinger, Cap. Projs. Adm. 
     
 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: Christina Calloway, Press  Pat Garcia, NMDOT 
   John Guldemann, Constructors, Inc. Emily Standefer  
 
  
Mayor King asked Councilor Salguero to give the invocation, and Emily Standefer and Planning Director 
Sammy Standefer to lead the Pledge of Allegiance and the Salute to the New Mexico flag. 
 
 
  
 



Minutes of October 2, 2012…………………………………………………………..  2 

(A)  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S): 
 

1. Regular Meeting of September 18, 2012. 
 

Mayor King asked for Council to consider and approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 
18, 2012.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson made the motion to approve the minutes of the regular 
meeting of September 18, 2012 as presented.  Councilor Salguero seconded the motion.  All 
Council members present voted in favor of the motion.  Motion carried.  
 
(Corrections made during Council meeting of October 16, 2012 to these minutes on pages 2 and 4:  
[strikethroughs are deletions]  words in red are the corrections.) 
 
 
(B)  PRESENTATION OF 20-YEAR SERVICE AWARD TO SAMMY STANDEFER, 
PLANNING DIRECTOR   
 
Mayor King asked Sammy Standefer, Planning Director, to step to the front of the room.  Mayor King 
asked Emily Standefer to give her dad his service award pin.  Mayor King read the letter presenting 
Standefer with his 20-Year Service award.  City Manager Howell told the Council and staff present at the 
meeting that Sammy [Stander] Standefer was a good employee and an asset to the City.  Mr. 
Standefer stated that he appreciated the honor of working for the City of Portales, and thanked them for 
the award. 
 
 
(C)  PROCLAMATION(S): 
 

1. Declaring October 7--13, 2012 as Fire Prevention Week in Portales, New 
Mexico. 
 

Mayor King asked Fire Chief Nuckols to step forward to receive the proclamation declaring October 7—13, 
2012 as Fire Prevention Week in Portales, New Mexico.  Mayor King read the proclamation aloud to Chief 
Nuckols, the Council and the audience.  Chief Nuckols commented on the varied public safety activities 
that will be taking place during the month of October.  He told the Council that there will be about 1,000 
kids touring the fire station from daycare centers, pre-kindergarten, 1st and 2nd grade.  He commented 
that his personnel will be making some presentations at the schools.  Nuckols stated that this will be the 
most kids they have ever seen.  He told the Council that the department will develop a strategy regarding 
the fact that there are now more cell phones in the home than land lines, the focus will be on making 
sure that kids know how to handle a cell phone in case of emergencies.  He commented that Fire 
Departments had taught for 40 years to dial 911.  Now the use of the cell phone will have to be taught to 
young kids.  Mayor King thanked Chief Nuckols and told him that she and the City Council appreciate all 
the Department’s efforts.   
 
 
(D)  UPDATE—U.S. HIGHWAY 70 IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Mayor King asked for a report on the U.S. Highway 70 improvements.  John Guldemann of Constructors, 
Inc. reported that 1st Street concrete has been poured on the roadway from Avenue C almost all the way 
to Avenue I and that the crews are prepping for sidewalks.  He commented that 2nd Street has been 
opened almost all the way to Avenue C.  He mentioned that there have been some concerns expressed 
by a citizen that lives around Dairy Queen that 1st Street will be closed putting them in a landlocked 
situation.  He commented that this will not be the case.  Pat Garcia of the NM Department of 
Transportation planned ahead to mitigate problems like this one.  Mayor King asked if the project was on 



Minutes of October 2, 2012…………………………………………………………..  3 

schedule.  Mayor King thanked Guldemann and Garcia for fixing the hole on 2nd Street close to her home 
on Avenue E.  She commented that heavy trucks going by that intersection were extremely loud before 
the hole was fixed.  Mayor King asked for questions or comments.  Mayor King asked how the work was 
progressing—still 27 days behind schedule.  Guldemann responded that the timeline is in the 
neighborhood of 27 days behind, but they are making progress on catching up with the timeline.  
Councilor Robinson asked if the concrete at the corner of Avenue C and 2nd Street will remain in place.  
Guldemann responded that it would be left in place.  Councilor Parker asked if Constructors Inc. is still 
pouring concrete at night.  Guldemann responded that they would be pouring in the early morning, and 
that concrete work was done at night while the heat was so high during the summer.  Pat Garcia talked 
about the contractor trying to pour concrete in the early morning to mitigate traffic problems.  John 
Guldemann reported that the plan is to mill the asphalt and replace it from the Super 8 to Avenue K; and 
that the landscaping will also be done as well.  Mayor King thanked them for their report. 
 
 
(E)  CONTRACT TO LEASE THE BLACKWATER DRAW WELL FIELD FOR GRAZING OF 
CATTLE TO CHAD DAVIS 
 
Mayor King asked Public Works Director John DeSha to report on the contract to lease Blackwater Draw 
Well Field to Chad Davis.  Mr. DeSha told the Council that the City had received two bids for grazing on 
the well field—Terry Cone and Chad Davis.  DeSha told the Council that Terry Cone’s bid was actually a 
little higher, but that Mr. Cone wanted the City to be responsible for fencing repairs, but the City would 
not agree to fencing repairs.  Mr. Chad Davis won the bid to lease six (6) sections in Blackwater Draw 
Well Field for grazing at a per acre price of $3.25 for 3,840 acres for a total price of $12,480.00.  DeSha 
told the Council that the contract for lease was for four (4) years with a clause to allow exit of the 
contract with a 30 day notice by either lessor or lessee.  He told the Council that the Public Works 
Committee approved recommending the contract to lease Blackwater Draw Well Field to Chad Davis.  
DeSha stated that the City Attorney had reviewed the contract, added wording to it and approved it.  
Mayor King asked for questions.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson asked if the agreement was a standard one.  
City Attorney Doerr responded that the terms are negotiable but the contract is a standard format.  
Mayor King asked the Council’s pleasure.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson made the motion to approve 
the contract to lease Blackwater Draw  Well Field to Chad Davis for grazing cattle as 
presented.  Councilor Parker seconded the motion.   All Council members present voted 
unanimously in support of the motion.  Motion carried.  No abstentions.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson asked about the other property the City owns north of town—what is the length 
of that contract.    City Manager responded that the lease was not renewed due to the cost of water.   
Contractor was using co-op water.   
 
   
(F)  RESOLUTION #12-13-14, ACCEPTANCE OF DONATION OF ROOSEVELT COUNTY 
MILNESAND FIRE DEPARTMENT’S 1994 FORD AMBULANCE TO THE CITY OF 
PORTALES/ROOSEVELT COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM   
 
Mayor King asked for a report on the resolution for acceptance of donation of an ambulance to the 
Emergency Management program.  City Manager Howell reported that the purpose of the resolution is to 
document formal acceptance by the Council for the record so that the unit can be included on the City’s 
inventory, legally registered in the City’s name and be insured.  He told the Council that the Roosevelt 
County Milnesand Fire Department wanted to get rid of it as surplus, and Emergency Management had a 
use for it.  Mayor King asked if it was ready to go like it is or does it need repair.  City manager Howell 
responded that they will do a little bit of work on it because they will change it to a communications 
vehicle.  Police Lieutenant Mark Cage told the Council that the work needed was minor.  Mayor Pro-Tem 
Jackson asked if EMS money would be used to fix it.  Both City Manager Howell and Police Lieutenant 



Minutes of October 2, 2012…………………………………………………………..  4 

Cage assured them that the expense for repairs would come from EMS money.   Mayor King asked the 
Council’s pleasure.  Councilor Parker made the motion to adopt Resolution #12-13-14 
accepting the donation of the 1994 Ford Ambulance from Milnesand Fire Department to the 
Portales/ Roosevelt County Emergency Management Program.   Councilor Robinson seconded 
the motion.  Roll call vote by all Council members present resulted in unanimous support of 
the motion.  Motion carried.  No abstentions.  
 
 
(G)  OTHER BUSINESS/CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 
 
Mayor King asked for items of other business.  
 
Mayor King commented that there were two things that the Council needs to work on at the next meeting 
—the Neighborhood Beautification ordinance and the job description for the City Manager Trainee.  She 
asked the City Clerk to make a copy of the one that Councilor Robinson had prepared and one that 
Councilor Lovett had submitted.  
 
Mayor King reported that she and City Manager Howell had attended an Eastern New Mexico Rural Water 
Authority meeting in Albuquerque last week.  She commented that a hearing had been held and that a 
second day of the hearing was held today on the injunction filed by the Village of Logan.   She told the 
Council that she would advise the Council as soon as she had a report. 
 
Councilor Salguero commented that there seemed to be less congestion at the ENMU Homecoming 
parade held Saturday, which must have been due to the route.  He asked if the Little Miss Merry 
Christmas parade would use the same route.  Mayor Pro-Tem Jackson stated that the regular route used 
for the Little Miss Merry Christmas parade is similar to the one used for the homecoming parade but goes 
the other way starting from the Recreation Center. 
 
Councilor Lucero stated that there seemed to be more traffic out at the substation—is there more 
activity.  Fire Chief Nuckols said that the Fire Department is trying to do all they can to keep people out 
there as much as possible.   
 
Councilor Robinson reported that he had attended the Eastern Plains Council of Governments (EPCOG) 
meeting recently and that all seemed to be doing well.  Robinson told the Council that they have caught 
up with their audit reports.  He commented that EPCOG had straightened out most of their issues.  He 
stated that the Board had approved a personnel policy for the EPCOG.  Mayor King stated that this was 
good news.   
 
Police Lieutenant Mark Cage reported that the Code Enforcement Officer was working hard. 
 
Fire Chief Nuckols told the Council that the NMMFA is working on the process for the loan for the aerial 
apparatus.  He reported that there have been some changes regarding EMS and ambulance side of things 
at the regional and state level—EMS Region III has an interim executive director, Donnie Roberts.   He 
commented that the Secretary of the Department of Health has resigned.  He added that it will be 
interesting to see how this will affect the Portales Fire Department.  He commented that the PRC 
inspection will take place 4:00 p.m., October 9th.  Mayor King commented that Donnie Roberts grew up 
here. 
 
Public Works Director DeSha pointed out that he had placed a packet with information that the Council 
had requested regarding painting of the water tanks.  He stated that he had asked the Signman to 
develop something in writing for the Council to consider.  He told the Council that the estimate of cost 
was on each sample.  He stated that the three samples are ordinary, traditional and classical.  DeSha 
stated that all of them can be done in paint.  He commented that this is not a quote or a bid, just a rough 



Minutes of October 2, 2012…………………………………………………………..  5 

estimate of cost.  He stated that the work would have to be done in the summer when the temperature is 
50 and above and would take about 6 weeks to complete.  Mayor King asked that it be brought back to 
the next meeting since Councilor Thomas was the one who had introduced the painting of the 
water tanks. 
 
Public Works Director John DeSha reported that everything seems to be going well—4 new hires in the 
Water Department, 1 new hire in Solid Waste and 3 in the Parks Department.  He reported that the 
Cemetery had some areas of dead weeds due to spraying of the broom grass. 
 
Councilor Parker asked about the status of the Grand Hotel.  City Manager Howell commented that 
nothing is moving on this project and that the developer is concentrating on his big project at Lime and 
Avon Streets.   
 
Mayor King asked if anyone knew the details of the Cannon Appreciation event set for the upcoming 
weekend.  City Attorney Doerr reported that the Cannon Appreciation event will be held at the 801 
housing project on Saturday, October 6th from 4 to 7 p.m. with hot dogs, hamburgers, chips and 
desserts.  He reported that the Fire Department will be there and that there will be plenty of activities for 
the kids.    
 
Fire Chief Nuckols invited all to attend the RGH Health Fair on October 13th at the hospital with health 
screenings and flu shots being offered.  He commented that everything will be set up in front of the 
hospital and that a car seat clinic and a clinic on bicycle helmets will be held also that the Fire 
Department will be assisting with the clinics. 
 
Mayor King reported that Saturday night will be the Habitat for Humanity fundraiser–Octoberfest at the 
First Methodist Church.  She reported that the Orlando Ortega’s and his group with the Classic Car Club 
will be holding a mini Great American race starting from the Courthouse and go to Clovis starting at 8:30 
a.m. on Sunday, October 13th.   
  
 
 (H)  EXECUTIVE SESSION/CLOSED EXECUTIVE MEETING: 
 

1. Action to Convene in a Closed Session/Meeting to Discuss Matters as 
Provided for Under New Mexico Statutes Pertaining to Open Meetings 
Referencing §10-15-1 H.(2), 1995, for Limited Personnel Matters. 

 
No Executive Session held. 
 
  
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business or comments, Mayor King adjourned the meeting at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
       
Joan Martinez-Terry, City Clerk 


